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Amanda Hughes - Quality Information Officer 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Amanda Hughes - Quality Information Officer 
12 November 2004 15:06 
Neil Stubbs - Operational Director; Ben Smith - Contracts & Compliance Monitoring 
Officer 
HSE Improvement Notice Action Plan 

Importance: High 

Just to confirm that the above completed Action Plan has been sent out to Nina Judkins today. 

I have attached the completed document together with a copy of the covering letter that was sent. 

Regards 

Mandy Hughes 

HSE final action HSE final letter 
planoct 04.do... 12.11.04,doc 

Tracking: Recipient Read 

Nell Stubbs - Operational Director 

Ben Smith - Contracts & Compliance Monitoring Officer Read: 12/11/2004 15:07 
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Mrs JM Judkins 
HM Inspector of Health & Safety 
Health & Safety Executive 
Priestley House 
Priestley Road 
Basingstoke 
RG24 9NW 

Our Ref: 
Your Ref: 

Date: 

12 November 2004 

H&S Improvement Notice/CH 
020360949 

Friday, 12 November 2004 

Dear Mrs Judkins 

I am pleased to enclose the final pan-PCT action plan in response to the Improvement Notice 
received by the PCT on 30 June 2003. 

The PCT will continue to work closely with East Hampshire and Portsmouth City PCTs to 
ensure the Action Plan is implemented within the required timescales. 

If you require any further information or have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours sincerely 

Fiona Cameron 
Director of Nursing and Clinical Governance 

Encs 
HSE Improvement Notice Final Action Plan 
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East Hampshire Primary Care Trust Fareham & Gosport PCT Portsmouth City PCT 

HSE IMPROVEMENT NOTICE 

FINAL ACTION PLAN: 29 July 2003 

Updated October 2004 
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East Hampshire PCT 

Potential Impact 

Fareham & Gosport POT 

MANUAL HANDLING: ACTION PLAN 

i iNO’~ AREA OF 
i i CONCERN 

1. 

Rare (1) Unlikel’ Possible (3) 

4 
Moderate (3) 6 
Major (4) 4 8 
Catastrophic (5) 5 10 

The HSE 
Inspector queried 
how staff are 
taught to use 
equipment they 
do not practice on 
their Handling 
Induction. 

RISK 
LEVEL 

Portsmouth City PCT 

Potential Likelihood 
Likely (4) Certain (5) 

4 5 
8 10 

A CTION RECOMMENDED 

1. Identify appropriate 
systems and relevant 
resources to teach all staff 
(incl. Bank nurses) how to use 
the equipment available on 
the wards. This should aim to 
ensure that ward based 
training is provided by 
competent persons and that 
all training is fully 
documented. 
2. Present a fully costed 

proposal to each PCT. 
3. Full/part PCT 

implementation of 

PERSON/S 
RESPONSIBLE 

1. Manual 
Handling Review 
Group (Systems 
advice) 
2.Handling 
Advisory Service 
through 
Portsmouth 
Hospitals Trust 
3.PCT approval 
4. Implementation 
of agreed 
proposal 

(PROPOSED) 
TIMESCALES 

1.31 July 2003 
2. 31 October 
2004 
3. From October 
2004 

IMPLEMENTATION OCTOBER 2004 
MONITORED BY UPDATE 

HSE Implementation Pan-PCT Training 
Group initially then proposal and 
convene pan-PCT programme developed 
Lifting & Handling (with costings). PCT’s 
Group to be updated and 

operational managers 
briefed - November 
2004. 
Manual Handling 
review Group being re- 
established to manage 

’ implementation of 
revised manual 
handling training. 
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AREA OF 
CONCERN 

The HSE 
Inspector queried 
whether it would 
have been more 
appropriate for 
this patient - who 
was known to 
have complex 
handling needs- 
to have been 
allocated to a 
trained nurse. 

Nursing staff do 
not receive formal 
training in 
carrying out a 
handling 
assessment and 
completing the 
handling profile 

RISK 
LEVEL 

10 

ACTION RECOMMENDED 

1 .Review how all PCT nurse 
managers decide which 
patients are allocated to which 
staff at the start of each shift 
e.g. patients with complex 
needs should be allocated to a 
member of staff that knows 
the patient whenever possible. 
2. Interim arrangements 
should be put into place to 
ensure Nurses in charge of 
each shift determine what 
handling equipment Bank staff 
have been trained to use. 
1. Handling Advisers to run 
Handling Risk Assessment 
Workshops for all PCT nursing 
staff responsible for 
completing handling profiles. 
2. Completion and review of 
handling profile and care plan 
documentation to be included 

PERSON/S (PROPOSED) IMPLEMENTATION OCTOBER 2004 
RESPONSIBLE 

All PCT Service & 
General 
Managers 

TIMESCALES 

Pilot training to 
be in place by 
October 2003. 

1. Manual 
Handling 
Advisers. 

As soon as 
possible. 

MONITORED BY 

Risk Management 
Committee 

Manual Handling 
Review Group 

PCT OMG/OMT or 
equivalent 2. PCT Service 

Managers 

UPDA TIE 

PCT’s Service 
Managers have 
confirmed current 
practice satisfies 
requirement. 
Bank staff receive 
moving and handling 
training. Equipment 
notices alert staff to 
the need to be trained. 
New training includes 
work based induction. 

1. Completed. 

2. PCT induction 
checklist has been 
updated to include this 
requirement. 

i l documentation, i in trained nurse induction at 

k, ward....!eve.!: ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 
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~i4. 

iis. 

AREA OF 
CONCERN 

Bank staff are 
currently 
responsible for 
identifying when 
they think their 
handling refresher 
training is due. 

Query whether 
Agency Contracts 
are robust in 
ensuring that staff 
are up to date 
with their 
mandatory and 
other training 
before being 

RISK    ACTION RECOMMENDED 
LEVEL 

9 

9 

All PCT Services to review 
arrangements for identifying 
when handling refresher and 
other mandatory training is 
due to ensure staff (inc. bank 
staff) attend on time (use 
Handling Links?) 

Agency Contracts to be 
reviewed to ensure training 
requirements for staff are 
specifically stated in SLAs and 
that contract is monitored for 
compliance. 

RESPONSIBLE    TIMESCALES    MONITORED BY 
PERSON/S (PROPOSED) IMPLEMENTATION OCTOBER 2004 

UPDA TIE 

HSE Implementation 
Group 

Neil Stubbs, East 
Hampshire PCT 

Fiona Cameron, 
Fareham & 
Gosport PCT 

Mark Wagstaff, 
Portsmouth City 
PCT 

New 
arrangements in 
place by 31 
December 2003 

Risk Management 
Committee 

Denise Farmer, 
East Hampshire 
PCT, on behalf of 
Personnel 
Managers in each 
PCT 

At next available 
opportunity 

allocated to 
wards. 

Superceded by the 
introduction of NHS 
Professionals. 
To be supported by 
the introduction of 
passport based 
training records. 
Further work on style 
of passport being 
undertaken. 

Superceded by the 
introduction of NHS 
Professionals. 
Contracts are currently 
under review. (October 
2004) 



NHE000176-0007 

ii ......................... 
6. 

AREA OF 
CONCERN 

Nurse managers 
may not be aware 
of the skills, 
experience, 
equipment used, 
etc, by Bank & 
Agency staff 
when they arrive 
on a ward. 

Health Care 
Support Workers 
and Bank/Agency 
staff not actively 
encouraged by 
Nursing staff to 
refer to Handling 
Profiles and Care 
Plans. 

RISK 
LEVEL 

9 

9 

ACTION RECOMMENDED 

1. PCTs to introduce a 
"passport" (or similar) 
document for staff to take 
with them from ward to 
ward which documents 
the training they have had, 
equipment they have been 
trained to use, etc. 

2. Staff should be actively 
discouraged from using 
equipment unless they have 
been trained or are being 
mentored to use the 

PERSON/S (PROPOSED) IMPLEMENTATION OCTOBER 2004 
RESPONSIBLE TIMESCALES MONITORED BY UPDATE 

31 October Risk Management 1. PCT’s working on 
2004 Committee ’passport’ system for 

Portsmouth City 
PCT to share 
proposal with 
other PCTs 

Proposal to be 
agreed and put 
into action. 

All 3 PCT Service 
Managers 

December 2004 

31 December 
2003 

equipment~ ........................................................................................................................... ............................................................................................................................ 
1. During shift handover the 1. & 2. All 3 PCT 30 September Risk Management 
Nurse in charge should Service 2003 Committee 
actively and positively 
promote the use and 
reference to Care Plans and 
Handling Profiles to all staff 
including Bank/Agency and 
ensure these are easily 
accessible. 
2. The Ward Induction of all 
new permanent nursing and 

Managers 

all PCTs to adopt. 
Further work on style 
of passport being 
undertaken. 

2. Service Managers 
alerted. Equipment 
marked to be used by 
trained operators only. 

1 & 2. PCT’s Service 
Managers have 
confirmed that current 
practice satisfies this 
requirement and that 
staff have been 
reminded during team 
meetings. 
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i iNo’ AREA OF 
CONCERN 

i i 8. The Handling 
~ 

Profile 
documentation is 

i i still headed as 
Portsmouth 
HealthCare and 

i i     suggestions were 

made by staff 
about possible 

~ ’ improvements to 
i i the format/ 

9 

ACTION RECOMMENDED 

Handling Advisers 
in consultation 
with PCT Service 
Managers 

1. Provide an interim update 
of forms to include PCT Iogos 
2. Update the Handling 
Profile in consultation with 
staff from PCT services to 
include prompts for details of 
core maneuvers 
and equipment to be used. 

’ (PROPOSED) ............. IMPLEMENTATION iocTOBER 2004 .................... 
TIMESCALES MONITORED BY i UPDATE 

1.Interim forms Handling Review F&G PCT logo 
produced by 30 Group changed on profiles in 
August 2003. use in the PCT. 

2. New forms 
produced by 31 
July 2004 

i i .................................. content. ........................................................................................................ ! .................................................................................................................................................. 



NHE000176-0009 

iNO" AREA OF i RISK ACTION RECOMMENDED i PERSON/S     (PROPOSED) ’ IMPLEMENTATION ........ OCTOBER 2004 ................ 
i i    CONCERN i LEVEL i RESPONSIBLE TIMESCALES MONITORED BY    UPDATE i l ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. i ....................................................................... i ............................................................... 
i l 9. The HSE 8 Audit inspection, maintenance Risk Managers in 31 October Risk Management All areas managed by 

i Inspector queried and replacement programmes consultation with 2003 Committee Fareham & Gosport 

i i whether a formal using risk assessment Service PCT have completed 
’~! = inspection and checklist. Managers the Risk Assessment 
~ replacement checklist. 

programme was 
’ in place for hoist All areas managed by 

slings. F&G PCT have 
completed the Risk 
Assessment checklist. 

!i There is a process of 
review in place for all 

i Community Equipment 
!i Loans. Resources are 

! identified for the 
ii 
’,~ funding of hoists and 

slings. Maintenance 
checks include checks 
of slings. It is 
recognised that further 
work is needed to 
ensure that hoist users 
are alert to the need to 

i i ~ inspect and report. 
i i This will be highlighted 

’ in the revised training. 

i L .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 
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i ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

AREA OF 
CONCERN 

ii NO 

The HSE 
Inspector 
expressed 
concern that the 
current day-long 
Handling 
Induction does 
not provide time 
to practice use of 
all handling 

RISK 
LEVEL 

ACTION RECOMMENDED 

Review existing provision of 
manual handling induction in 
light of proposals for new 
system. 

i 
PERSON/S (PROPOSED) IMPLEMENTATION OCTOBER 2004 

i RESPONSIBLE TIMESCALES MONITORED BY UPDATE 

Manual Handling Review PCT Risk Advisers This item has been 
Review Group completed by addressed via the 
and HSE 31 October Training programme 
Implementation 2004. developed. 
Group 

11. Concerns were 6 Review access to patient Manual Handling Review PCT Risk Advisers This item has been 
expressed by handling induction and Review Group completed by 31 addressed via the 
nursing staff refresher training in light of and HSE October 2004 Training programme 
about the proposals for new system. Implementation developed. 

i i availability of Group 
handling courses 
and refresher 

................. courses: ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 
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i No== AREA OF ........ Risk ACTION RECOMMENDED ......... PERSON/S .... (PROPOSED) ............ IMPLEMENTATION ...... OCTOBER 2004 ............... 
CONCERN 

[-:12~-i Occ Health and 
the Bank i 

i Management 
i l Team were 
~i advised when it 

became known 
that the member 

i of staff had 
i sustained a 

~ i serious injury. 

Z i i However, this 
::i i information was 

i not reported to 
the Ward/Service 
Manager. 

i Similarly, the 
i Bank did not 

automatically 
receive a copy of 

i i 
the risk event 

i i form straight 
away. 

LEVEL 

6 
review/improve arrangements 
for sharing details of incidents 
involving bank staff with 
wards/service managers and 
vice versa. 

RESPONSIBLE TIMESCALES MONITORED BY UPDATE 

1. All PCT Services ;[o .......................... ii PCT Se~ice .......... Review ........................ Risi<Management ............................ iii~arei~am& Gospo~ .... 
Managers completed by 31 Committee PCT Service 

October 2003 Managers have 
i 

2. Re-design of Risk Event 
form to include a "prompt" to 
remind Managers to send a 
copy of relevant forms to the 
Bank Management Team 
(Portsmouth City PCT) or a 
nominated individual in 
Fareham & Gosport PCT and 
East Hampshire PCT (re- 
design of form in line with 
NPSA minimum data set). 

2. PCT Risk Risk Event Form 
Advisers to be re- 

designed by 30 
December 2003 

confirmed that current : 
practice satisfies this 
requirement and that 
staff have been 
reminded during team 
meetings. 
East Hants PCT work 
with NHS 
Professionals and 
routinely provide 
copies of high-risk 
events signed off by 
the ward/service 
manager. 
Portsmouth City as 
above. 

2. New Adverse Event 
Form includes prompt 
to copy form to 
Agency/Bank/NHS 
Professionals. Pan- 
PCT pilot completed. 

i New forms 
i streamlining reporting 

i arrangements to be 
i implemented late 
i 2004/early. 201~5~ ................................... 



NHE000176-0012 

! !Nb’ AREA OF ......................................................................... RISK ACTION RECOMMENDED PERSON/S ........... (PROPOSED) ....... iMPLEMENTATION ’ OCTOBER 2004 ............. 

il;: i...;1.3.:_...., CONCERN 

LEVEL RESPONSIBLE TIMESCALES MONITORED BY UPDATE 

Evidence 6 1. All Services to remind All Service & 30 September Risk Management PCT’s Service 
;!i suggests risk Managers about the General 2003 Committee Managers have 
~� :,~ events are being ~ importance of prompt Managers confirmed that current 

stockpiled on completion and onward practice satisfies this 
wards before distribution of risk event forms requirement and that 
being sent to to Service Managers. staff have been 
Service Managers 2. Arrangements for notifying reminded. Where 

~i and details of Consultants/Lead Clinicians of delays are evident i 
incidents all patient-related incidents to feedback is provided 
involving patients be reviewed, i to managers. 
not being 
communicated 
quickly to 
Consultants. 

Updated: November 2004 

10 


